A Guide to Timing in Aegisub

Author: jadpraet Last Update: 27 Jun 2011

Disclaimer: This document has as a goal to teach new timers how to do their job. However, I will not claim that this is the ultimate way to do things. After all, every timer will eventually develop his or her own style. This however, is the way I would explain things to a newbie and thus it's mostly based on my way of timing and the way I learned it.

Table of Contents

1	Getti	ng Started	. 1
	1.1	What is timing?	1
	1.2	Downloading Aegisub	1
	1.3	Loading the necessary files	
	1.4	The options menu	
2	The l	Basics	4
_	2.1	Rough timing	
	2.2	Fine timing	
		2.2.1 Lead-in and lead-out	
		2.2.2 Line-linking	
		2.2.3 Keyframe snapping	
	2.3	The timing post-processor.	
	2.4	Checking your work	9
3	Help	ful Things	10
•	3.1	Hotkeys	10
	3.2	Preparing for the post-processor	11
	3.3	Timing signs	13
	3.4	Dealing with overlapping lines	16
	3.5	Missing lines	16
	3.6	Missing keyframes	17
4	Spec	ial Types of Timing	17
	4.1	Pre-timing	
	4.2	Alpha timing	
	4.3	Karaoke timing	
		4.3.1 Kanji timer	
5	Glos	sary of Terms	20
6	F.A.C]	21
7	Cond	lusion	21
Α	Арре	ndix A	22
	A.1	Timing guidelines	22
	A.2	Tpp settings	22

1 Getting Started

Starting, the most important step for just about everything. If you already know all this, you can skip it though. However, at least try to skim through sections 1.3 and 1.4 since they mention a few important things.

1.1 What is timing?

Before we actually get started, I will answer this simple-sounding question. In my opinion, good timing is syncing subtitles with voices in such a way that the viewer can read them comfortably. In particular, this means that the subtitles stay <u>long enough on screen</u> to read, there is <u>no subtitle</u> <u>flickering</u> and there are <u>no scene bleeds</u>.

1.2 Downloading Aegisub

To download Aegisub, go to <u>http://www.aegisub.org/</u> and scroll down to downloads. There, you can select the version you need. Of course, you should install it after downloading.

1.3 Loading the necessary files

Well, this step might actually pose some difficulties to newbies if they don't have access to a video file and a script. If you're already in a fansub group, you could ask them to provide you with a video and script for training purposes. If not, I suggest looking for a script on the internet and downloading a raw for the episode.

Here's a site where you can find some scripts: <u>http://freetl.wordpress.com/</u>

Now, for the actual loading of the files. In most cases, you'll have a .txt or .ass file for the script. You can just right click on the file and choose "Open with > Aegisub". Alternatively, you can open Aegisub and click "File > Open Subtitles..." and open the file.

To open the video file, click "Video > Open Video..." To open the audio, click "Audio > Open Audio from Video..." or if the audio isn't included in the video, click "Audio > Open Audio File" to load the audio separately. If you got a "timecodes.txt" included with the video, you should also click "Video > Open Timecodes File..." Finally, click "Video > Detach Video" and minimize the detached video, since we won't be needing that for now.

Your main window should now look somewhat like Image 1. You might have a green audio graph instead of the one in the image though. We'll get back to that later on.



Image 1: after loading the necessary files

1.4 The options menu

Now that you have loaded the files, you'll have to check some options before starting to time. Therefore, go to "View > Options".

First, go to "Video". Next to "Video provider" you should choose avisynth if the video is an avi or ffmpegsource if the video is mkv or mp4.

Note: you can also use ffmpegsource for avi files, but at the time of writing this guide it was a little buggy.

Next, go to "Audio". Check the box "Snap to keyframes" and set 150 and 350 as "Default lead-in length" and "Default lead-out length" respectively. Snapping to keyframes will make fine timing easier. The lead-in and lead-out will also play an important role later on, although it isn't set in stone that you have to use those values. Those are just my personal preference.

Doptions					
General	Options				
···· File save/load ···· Subtitles edit box	Match video resolution on ope	n:	Never		
Subtitles grid	Default Zoom:		100%		
Video Audio	Fast jump step in frames:		10		
Display Advanced	Screenshot save path:		?video 👻		
Automation	✓ Show keyframes in slider				
Hotkeys	Advanced - EXPERT USERS ONLY				
	WARNING: Changing these settings might result in bugs, crashes, glitches and/or movax.				
	Don't touch these unless you l				
	Video provider:	avisy avisy	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
	Subtitles provider:	_	egsource		
	Avisynth memory limit:	64			
	Allow pre-2, 568 Avisynut				
Restore Defaults	ОК	Ca	ncel <u>A</u> pply <u>H</u> elp		

Image 2: the video menu in the options

>> Options	
General File save/load Subtitles edit box Subtitles grid Video Audio Display Advanced Automation Hotkeys	Options Image: Grab times from line upon selection Default mouse wheel to zoom Image: Lock scroll on Cursor Image: Snap to keyframes Image: Snap to adjacent lines Auto-focus on mouse over Default timing length: 2000 Default lead-in length: 150 Default lead-out length: 350 Show inactive lines: Show previous
Restore Defaults	OK Cancel <u>Apply</u> <u>H</u> elp

Image 3: the audio menu in the options

2 The Basics

Before saying anything else, I will stress this first: SAVE YOUR WORK AFTER EACH SECTION!

2.1 Rough timing

Rough timing (also known as sharp timing) consists of making the lines start and stop exactly at the start and end of the dialogue. To do so, you'll have to look at the audio graph and use your ears.

You can set the starting time by left-clicking in the audio graph whereas the ending time is set by right-clicking. To commit your selection, you'll have to push button 13 or press G on the keyboard. If button 16 is activated, you will then automatically jump to the next line, which is a real time saver. Also, you'll want button 15 to be turned off to prevent auto-committing.



Image 4: rough timing

The most important buttons in the image above are 3, 6, 9, 13 and 20. The short keys for these are S, Q, D and G. S plays your current selection. Q plays the last 500 ms before your selection. D plays the last 500 ms of your selection. And G commits your changes, as explained before. S, Q and D help a lot to check if you timed the line correctly. Finally, you can use the horizontal zoom slider to the left of number 20 to zoom in on the audio graph.

Tip: instead of pressing the scroll bar with your mouse to move forward, you can also push F on your keyboard. Thus, you should <u>always keep your left hand near the S, Q, D, G and F keys</u>.

Now you might be wondering why my audio graph looks different than yours. That's because I have activated button 18, which turns on the "Spectrum analyzer mode". Personally, I find it easier to find sounds in this mode than with the green audio graph. As you can see in Image 4, it's clear where someone is saying something. With the green audio graph however, it didn't look as clear to me.

Anyway, you now know enough to do rough timing, so have fun applying it to your training file. On your first try, it will probably take a few hours, but it's very well possible to do rough timing in just as much time as the playtime of the video. So don't get discouraged if things go slowly on your first tries!

When you're finished, save your work and proceed to the next section.

2.2 Fine timing

Fine timing (or scene timing) is an essential part of the timing process. It's the part where the subtitles are made comfortable for the viewer to read. Here is where you make sure that the subtitles stay <u>long enough on screen</u> to read, there is <u>no subtitle flickering</u> and there are <u>no scene</u> <u>bleeds</u>.

Those three things can be done automatically by the post-processor, but it is essential that the timer also knows how to perform them manually, because the post-processor can sometimes screw up a bit. To practise, I would recommend doing the first 20 lines of your script manually. After that, revert back to the file you saved after rough timing and continue to section 2.3.

2.2.1 Lead-in and lead-out

This one is easy. You just have to add lead-in and lead-out to each of the lines. You can do this either by pressing button 11 and 12 and than committing the change, or just press C for lead-in and V for lead-out on the keyboard, followed by G to commit. The amount of lead-in and lead-out that is added depends on the number you filled in under options earlier.

Attention: do not forget to commit the changes after applying lead-in and lead-out!

Another important point: <u>no line should be shorter than 500 ms</u>! Anything shorter is completely impossible to read!

2.2.2 Line linking

After the previous step, you probably have some overlapping lines. When that's the case, you should select the two lines, then right click and choose "Make lines continuous (change end)". This will change the ending time of the first line to match the starting time of the second line.

There is another situation where you'll want to link lines. If, after adding lead-in and lead-out, two lines are 500 ms or less apart from each other, you should extend the time of the first line to match the one of the second line. Again, this is done with "Make lines continuous (change end)". This is to prevent what I call "subtitle flickering". However, some timers use a smaller value than 500 ms or don't do line linking at all because they like it more that way.

K	araoke	Join	Split					Make times continuous (change start)	
	Comment Default							Make times continuous (change end)	
0	0:0:	1:45.69 0	:01:50.56	0:00:04.87	0 0 0	BZ		Recombine Lines	Tir
Ka	Kazuki Muto has become involved as an alchemy warrior in the battle with the home							Create audio clip	F
L								Сору	
								Cut	
#	Start	End	Style	Text				Paste	F
1	0:01:45.69	0:01:50.56	Default	Kazuki Muto has beco	me involved as an al	chemy warrior		Delete	
2	0:01:50.69	0:01:53.84	Default	He was stabbed throu	ugh the heart and kill	ed.	_		

Image 5: line-linking

2.2.3 Keyframe snapping

Have you noticed those purple lines that appear frequently in the audio graph? Those are called keyframes. Usually, they indicate that a large portion of the image on screen changes, e.g. when the video was showing the face of one character speaking, it suddenly shows the face of the other character.

If you're 300 ms or closer to a keyframe after adding the lead-in, you should extend your line to start at that keyframe. You'll see that your cursor is hovering above the keyframe if the white line turns green.

If you're 500 ms or closer to a keyframe after adding the lead-out, you should extend your line to end at that keyframe.

Again, the exact values timers use vary, but 300 ms and 500 ms are the ones I use.



Image 6: the green line you see when hovering above such a purple keyframe

Attention: you should always be alert when snapping to keyframes! Snapping the start of a line to a keyframe usually doesn't bring any trouble. Snapping the end of a line to a keyframe however, sometimes does! E.g. some dialogue extends 150 ms over the keyframe. You add the 350 ms as lead-out. In this case, it's still within 500 ms of the keyframe. In this case, you should try snapping it to the keyframe. If only one syllable disappears by doing this (like the "su" from "desu") it should be all right.

However, if it's more than one syllable, it's risky. In that case, you will have to use your own judgement. Is it too noticeable that the subs disappear before the dialogue? If the answer is "yes", do not snap to the keyframe!



Image 7: both the start and end of the line have been snapped to a keyframe (notice how I ignore the little bit of sound after the keyframe)

This should cover the basics of fine timing. There is still one small detail, the splitting of long lines, but I usually do that when I check the video.

2.3 The timing post-processor

Did you think that you'd have to do all the fine timing manually? Well, actually, it's entirely possible, but it's more time consuming than the automatic way: the timing post-processor (tpp).

To access the tpp, click "Timing > Timing Post-Processor". We have several options here. To make sure we have a lead-in, let's start with adding a lead-in. To do so, uncheck all the boxes except for "Add lead in" and type 150 next to it. Also, you should make sure that you have only checked the styles you want to apply it to. When you're ready, click "OK". (see also Image 8)

Next, we're going to add the lead-out, do the line-linking and the keyframe snapping. Check all the boxes except for "Affect selection only" and "Add lead in". As for the values, you should have 350 for lead-out, 500 as threshold and the bias meter about 4/5 to the end. This will add a 350 ms lead-in and extend it to match the starting time of the next line if it's 500 ms or closer to it.

The values for keyframe snapping will depend on the video, since these values are in number of frames. We want them to be about 250 ms, 300 ms, 500 ms and 500 ms. However, some videos have a frame rate of 23.976 fps while others have one of 29.97 fps. Using some basic math, we then find the following values:

23.976 fps:	6	8	29,97 fps:	8	10
	12	12		15	15

Note 1: if you want to play really safe, you can add the lead in first, next add only lead out, then make the lines continuous and finally, do the keyframe snapping. This might just be paranoia, but I feel the tpp messes up less when doing this in four separate steps.

Note 2: Adding the lead in should always be done separately from the rest, because in my timing style, lead in takes precedence over lead out.

Timing Post-Processor	
Apply to styles	Options Affect selection only Lead-in/Lead-out Add lead in: 150 Add lead out: 350 Make adjacent subtitles continuous Enable Threshold: 500 Bias: Start <> End Keyframe snapping
	Enable Starts before thres.: 6 Starts after thres.: 8
	Ends before thres.: 12 Ends after thres.: 12
All None	OK Cancel <u>H</u> elp

Image 8: adding the lead-in

• Timing Post-Processor	
Apply to styles	Options Affect selection only Lead-in/Lead-out Add lead in: 150 Add lead out: 350 Make adjacent subtitles continuous Enable Threshold: 500 Bias: Start <-
	Keyframe snapping
	Enable Starts before thres.: 6 Starts after thres.: 8
	Ends before thres.: 12 Ends after thres.: 12
All None	OK Cancel <u>H</u> elp

Image 9: adding the rest (for a 23.976 fps video)

To see the frame rate of a video, you can install MediaInfo. (<u>http://mediainfo.sourceforge.net/en</u>) After installing it, you can right-click your video file and select MediaInfo. Next click "View > Tree" and look under "Video" for "Frame rate".

Now the tpp should have applied all the necessary steps to the script. However, the tpp screws up a bit sometimes. Therefore, it's very important to check everything. This is what we'll do in the next section. Do not forget to save your file now though, and name it differently than the one you were supposed to save after rough timing!

Tip: section 3.2 will explain a simple technique you can use to prevent the tpp from screwing up too much.



Image 10: finding frame rate with MediaInfo

2.4 Checking your work

This is the most time consuming part of timing once you're very good at rough timing. Usually, rough timing takes between 20 to 40 minutes. Next, running the tpp takes just a minute. And finally, checking the video takes at least as long as the length of the video, sometimes even up to three times the length.

Things you might encounter when watching the video to check your work are:

- The tpp snapped the line to the wrong keyframe (this can happen a lot in heavy action scenes). You can try to avoid this problem by using the technique in section 3.2.
- Sometimes, a character screams the last syllable of a word (e.g. "nani desu kaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaa?!"), making the sound last a whole second. If somewhere in that one second of screaming a keyframe is crossed, the tpp won't snap it to the keyframe. You'll have to spot that and correct it by yourself. This too can be avoided with the technique in section 3.2 though.
- Two lines might overlap when they shouldn't. This usually happens because the tpp does keyframe snapping after line-linking. This one is a little hard to avoid if you're using the tpp, so you should always check for this problem.
- You might notice missing keyframes resulting in scene bleeds or reverse bleeds (refer to section 3.6 and section 5 for that).
- A line doesn't appear long enough to be readable. Note: Sometimes, you'll even have to improvise a bit and bend the rules to make a line stay long enough on screen to be readable enough.

One last thing that you might notice when watching the video, is that some subtitles take up more than two lines on the screen. In such a case, you should break it at the appropriate place (e.g. pause in speech or scene change). **Remember**: subtitles should never be longer than 2 lines!

To split a line, select it. Then, in the text box, place your cursor where you want to split. Right-click and select "Split at cursor (preserve times)". After that, you'll manually have to time the two lines, including adding lead-in and lead-out, line-linking and keyframe snapping.

	Select All	
1		— πect
0:00:01.00	Split at cursor (preserve times)	B AB AB Commit Time Frame
0.00.01.00	Split at cursor (estimate times)	B AB AB Commit Time Frame
e homunculi, b	and find the one man who could make an	ancidote" for the true form, the Creator, and capture him.

Image 11: splitting a line

If you didn't find any more imperfections, you have finally finished timing your first anime episode!

Note: Don't forget to save it and give it an appropriate name.

3 Helpful Things

You can already time now, but there are several ways to make it go faster. There are also some special problems that you might encounter. All of those (at least the one I can think of from the top of my head) will be covered in the following sections.

3.1 Hotkeys

Take a look at Image 12. Buttons 1 to 13 can all be accessed with keys on your keyboard. I'll put them here in table form. **Note:** If you want to, you can change the hotkeys in the options menu.

1	Left/Z	Previous line/syllable
2	Right/X	Next line/syllable
3	Space/S	Play selection
4	R	Play current line
5	Н	Stop
6	Q	Play 500ms before selection
7	W	Play 500ms after selection
8	E	Play first 500ms of selection
9	D	Play last 500ms of selection
10	Т	Play from selection start to end of file
11	С	Add lead-in
12	V	Add lead-out
13	G	Commit changes
	F	Scroll forward in audio graph
	А	Scroll backward in audio graph

Table 1: hotkeys

😵 * timing_test.ass - Aegisub 2.1.8				
<u>File Edit Subtitles Timing Video Audio Automation View H</u> elp				
D 😂 🔛 🜩 🔎 🔎 📅 📅 🚍 🖳 🚼 🖶 🏧 💕 🖋 🗑 🗞 🤌 🏄 🧔 🕅 🖋 🗭 🗗 🔅 🕷				
0:01:53.97 0:01:53.97 1:54 1:55 1:55 1:54 1:54 1:55 1:54 1:55 1:54 1:55 1:55 1:56 1:57 1:58 1:59 1:50 1:55 1:55 1:55 1:55 1:55 1:55 1:55 1:55 1:57				
Comment Default ✓ Actor ✓ Effect 0 0:01:54.45 0:01:55.93 0:00:01.48 0 0 B 2 2 5 n AB AB AB AB Commit © Time Frame Damn! He's become involved!				
# Start End Style Text 1 0:01:45.84 0:01:50.21 Default Kazuki Muto has become involved as an alchemy warrior in the battle with the homunculi. Image: Comparison of the battle with the homunculi.				
2 0:01:50.84 0:01:53.49 Default Kazuk Muto has become involved as an alchemy warrior in the battle with the homunculi.				
2 0:01:50.84 0:01:55.49 Default He was stabbed through the neart and killed. 3 0:00:00.00 0:00:00.00 Default Damn! He's become involved!				
4 0:00:00.00 0:00:00.00 Default He was given new life by the warrior, Tokiko.				
5 0:00:00.00 0:00:00.00 Default Kazuki had the Kakunane embedded into his heart. 5 0:00:00.00 0:00:00.00 Default Kazuki had the Kakunane embedded into his heart.				

Image 12: the buttons

Besides all of the keys mentioned in the earlier sections, you might find E and W useful too at times.

Finally, a way to go through the video is selecting an area, then press S. This will play the selected area, but you can set your start and end time for the line in the meantime with the help of the audio graph. If you use G to commit your changes and jump to the next line, the audio will keep playing as long as it hasn't gone past the end time of your selection. Using this and making quick checks with Q and D, it's possible to rough time an episode in real time.

3.2 Preparing for the post-processor

If you take a look at the images below, you'll notice that the actual sound stops just a little bit after the keyframe at 20:14.74. However, after applying the tpp, the line will be extended to the keyframe at 20:15.74. This happens because the tpp adds lead-out first and then sees that the second keyframe is closer to the end of the line.

If you know that you will use the tpp, you can prevent this from happening by ending the line somewhere between half a second and 300 ms before the keyframe you want it to snap to later on. This also means that you won't have to time very precisely when you are close to a keyframe while knowing you'll apply the tpp afterwards. Sometimes, this can really save some time.

Note: depending on how much lead-out you'll add, you'll want to end the line a little closer or a little further from the keyframe. The values above are once again the ones I use.



We don't have the time to mess around! Let's go from here!

Image 13: after applying tpp



Image 14: applying the technique



Image 15: applying the tpp after applying technique, correct result

3.3 Timing signs

In some groups, the timer is also required to time the signs to make things easier for the typesetter later on in the fansubbing process. Timing signs obviously can't be done with the audio graph alone, which means we'll finally use that video we detached a long time ago.

I time signs by timing them to the video first during the rough timing phase. This doesn't have to be perfect though. I also apply a different style to them by clicking "Subtitles > Styles Manager..." and copying my "Sign" style to the "Current script" box. Chances are that you don't have a "Sign" style in your "Storage" yet, so let's make one first.

First click "New" under "Storage". (Image 16) Then put "Sign" under "Style name" and choose 8 for alignment. I change the alignment because it makes it easier to distinguish between signs and actual dialogue while watching the video. You don't need to change any other options, that's for the typesetter to do. So just press "OK" for now. (Image 17)

Only one last thing to do now: press "Copy to current script ->" under Storage while selecting your new "Sign" style. Now you can set the "Sign" style for the line by selecting the line and choosing the style as you can see in Image 18.

Setting the "Sign" style is important, because that way you can deselect that style in the tpp so it doesn't change the timing for it.

Note: to help the typesetter find the signs later on, I add a comment line before and after the sign. You can do this by right clicking the line and selecting "Insert (before)" and "Insert (after)". Then, you select each of the two new lines and check the box next to "Comment". (see also Image 19)

🖉 Styles Manager	
Catalog of available storages	
Default	New Delete
Storage	Current script
Default Narrator Sign	Default
Background Voice	
Ĭ Q	Ĭ Q
Copy to current script ->	<- Copy to storage Import from script
New Edit Copy Delete	New Edit Copy Delete
	Close <u>H</u> elp

Image 16: styles manager

S Style Editor	×
Style name	Outline
Style name.	Outline: 2 Shadow: 2 Opaque box
Font	Miscellaneous
Arial 👻 20	Scale X%: 100 Scale Y%: 100
Bold Italic Underline Strikeout	Rotation: 0 Spacing: 0
Colors	Encoding: 1 - Default
Primary Secondary Outline Shadow	Preview
Margins Alignment	Aegisub 0123月語
Left Right Vert 0 7 0 8 0 9	000000000000000000000000000000000000000
	Aegisub\N0123 月語
	DK Cancel <u>A</u> pply <u>H</u> elp

Image 17: creating a new style

🥸 * latest.ass - Aegisub 2.1.8						
<u>File E</u> dit <u>S</u> ubtitles <u>T</u> iming <u>V</u> ideo <u>A</u> udio <u>A</u> utomation Vie <u>w</u> <u>H</u> elp						
D 🖆 🖬 🖕 🕫 🏷 🗊 🐨 🐨 🚍 🖳 🖶 🖶 📰 🕷 🕲 🕲 🕸 🎲 🐉 🍪 🕲 💀 🖉 🔆 🗱 🐦 🔊						
Image: Split Image: Split						
Comment Default						
0 ↓ CDefault 0 0 0 BZUS fn AB AB AB Commit © Time ○ Frame						
The True Identity of the <u>Homunculi</u>						
# Start End Style Text						
18 0:02:53.20 0:02:56.28 Default and a new power, Kazuki						
19 0:02:56.28 0:03:01.28 Default together with the warrior Tokiko has been chosen to fight against the homunculi.						
20 0:03:01.96 0:03:06.29 Default The True Identity of the Homunculi						
21 0:03:11.87 0:03:14.00 Default As for Mita and Saruwatari?						
0:03:14.00 0:03:15.00 Default Yes.						
23 0:03:15.00 0:03:16.92 Default The research institute was destroyed.						
24 0-03:16.92 0-03:21.37 Default Meaning communication with the hiding hom incidi has ceased						

Image 18: setting the "Sign" style

Now that we have set the "Sign" style, we'll still have to time it exactly. To do so, you'll need to use the video. Click on the video window after selecting the line and then use the left/right arrow keys to navigate through the frames or the SHIFT + left/right arrow keys to go to the previous or next keyframe. When you find the first frame where the sign appears, click the "Set start of selected subtitles to current video frame" button. To set the ending time for the line, find the last frame where the sign is still visible and click the "Set end of selected subtitles to current video frame" button. (see also Image 20)

To set the ending time, find the last frame where the sign is still visible and set it as the ending time in the box next to the starting time.

Note: even if it's a line that's fading in, you should set the starting or ending time to be when it as practically invisible. The typesetter should add fade-in or fade-out afterwards.

🍪 *	latest.as	s - Aegis	ub 2.1.8	8					Γ.														27					x
<u>F</u> ile	<u>E</u> dit	<u>S</u> ubtitles	Timi	ng <u>V</u> i	deo	Aud	lio	Auto	matio	Vie <u>w</u>	Hel	р														_	_	
		¢ 🕫		-										1	2	8	-8	5	Ō	87 '	ABS	$\mathbf{\lambda}$	{t}}					_
				00 /0		•	•		* 14		10		~	9		892	 ~		 <u> </u>	- 040	• I	<i>.</i>			_			
•	3:01) [] (••			~		3:06	· '3:07			¢	3:09	_		 3:11			'	3	' l 3:1	4	3:	15			
	Comment Sign Actor Effect																											
0	Comment this line out. Commented lines don't show up on screen. 0 B Z Y 🗢 Fn AB AB AB Commit Time O Frame																											
#	Start		End	Style	Tex																							-
18		.20 0:0:																										
19					t tog	together with the warrior Tokiko has been chosen to fight against the homunculi.																						
20		.28 0:03		-																								
21	0:03:01	.96 0:03	3:06.29	Sign	The	True	: Ide	ntity o	of the H	omunculi																		
22		.29 0:03																										
23																												
24	0.03.14	00 0.0	8-15-00	Default	t Yes																							Ŧ

Image 19: making signs more noticeable for the typesetter

<u>F</u> ile <u>E</u> dit	<u>S</u> ubtitles	<u>T</u> iming	<u>V</u> ideo	<u>A</u> udio	<u>A</u> utoma	tion Vie <u>w</u>
D 🖻 🖫	🗭 🔎	50%	•	55	므 모	🖶 🥅 🛱

Image 20: two essential buttons

3.4 Dealing with overlapping lines

To deal with overlapping lines caused by several people talking at once, I usually just use the tpp as usual. However, when checking the video afterwards, I pay extra attention to potential screwups. When it's just one or two overlapping lines, it might turn out fine, but if two people are talking at the same time for a long period, it will be really important to check well.

To be honest, I find dealing with overlapping lines to be the only frustrating part of timing if there are too many of them. Fortunately, this doesn't occur very often in most series.

3.5 Missing lines

Sometimes it happens that the translator forgot to translate a line. If you think that is the case, you should add a line by right-clicking and using "Insert (before)" or "Insert (after)". You should write something like "!!! MISSING LINE !!!" there and time it to the untranslated dialogue. You should also notify the translator or project leader about it.

3.6 Missing keyframes

This is something that you might notice when you check your work by watching the video with your timed script. If you notice a scene bleed or reverse scene bleed, pause the video and check the audio graph at that time.

The scene bleed might have been caused either because the tpp didn't snap the line to the keyframe or it might be that you are dealing with a missing keyframe which caused the line to pass over a scene change.

In the latter case, you'll have to use the same technique as for doing the precise timing of signs (see section 3.3). You'll manually have to search the time where the scene change happens and adjust the starting or ending time of the line to avoid causing a scene bleed.

4 Special Types of Timing

There are a few special types of timing besides the normal one. These will be explained in the following sections.

4.1 Pre-timing

Pre-timing consists of timing lines to a dialogue without translation so the translator can fill them in later. You should time the lines to what you think are different sentences. Usually, I pre-time using audio only and set the start and end times at the exact start and end of a spoken sentence.

Note: you'll probably have to split or join lines afterwards because you might have timed a line to just part of a sentence or two sentences. You can either do rough timing or fine timing, but if you do fine timing and have to join or split the lines afterwards, you'll have to correct them manually.

#	Start	End	Style	Text
151	0:10:55.55	0:10:57.96	Default	
152	0:10:58.90	0:11:00.40	Default	
153	0:11:01.51	0:11:03.59	Default	
154	0:11:05.29	0:11:06.06	Default	
155	0:11:10.37	0:11:13.54	Default	
156	0:11:14.88	0:11:16.09	Default	

Image 21: pre-timed script

4.2 Alpha timing

Another special type of timing is alpha timing. This consists of delaying the appearance of part of the line. For example:

Hey, hey, mama? Hey, hey, mama? What are you doing?

To achieve this, you should use the "{\alpha&HFF&}" tag by placing it before the part of the line that needs to appear later. Next, duplicate the line but leave the tag out. Of course, you'll need to time the first line to the moment where only the first part of the line should appear, and the second line

where the whole text should appear. Also, remember to link the lines and snap to keyframes if necessary.



Image 22: alpha timing

Note: This is quite a controversial way of timing. Some people like it because they can't see ahead in the dialogue if something surprising is going to happen, while other people hate it because they have to focus more on the subs than on the screen. This kind of timing should only be used in cases like a countdown or something.

4.3 Karaoke timing

A final special kind of timing is karaoke timing. With this, I don't mean simply matching the text to each line. I mean matching each syllable to the corresponding syllable in the song to create a karaoke effect. We won't be creating actual karaoke effects in this section though, we'll only be timing them.

First, you should time the karaoke lines to match the voices exactly, like rough timing. Next, select a line and press the "Karaoke" button.

😵 OP.ass - Aegisub 2.1.8						
<u>File Edit Subtitles Timing V</u> ideo <u>A</u> udio <u>A</u> utomation Vie <u>w</u> <u>H</u> elp						
□ ☞ 🖬 🕈 🕫 🗩 25% 🚽 🎬 🏪 🖳 🖳 🗮 🗰 💕 🖉 👜 🗞 🔌 🎒 🍪 🐘 🖉 🙆 🐯 🌮 🖉						
Modified bokura sora takaku kimi wo m 1 1 2 3 4 5 6 Karaoke Join Spit bokura sora takaku kimi wo mamotteku						
Comment Default						
0 🔶 0:00:00.75 0:00:07.25 0:00:06.50 0 0 0 B Z V 🗢 Fn AB AB AB AB Commit						
bokura sora takaku kimi wo mamotteku						
# Start End Style Text						
1 0:00:00.00 0:00:00.00 Default 「約束」"Promise"						
2 0:00:00.75 0:00:07.25 Default bokura sora takaku kimi wo mamotteku						
3 0:00:07.56 0:00:17.53 Default tsuyosa hakanasa no kono hane de						
4 0:00:21.36 0:00:27.54 Default nukumori wo oshiete kureta						
5 0:00:28.20 0:00:34.24 Default kanashimi wo nugutte kureta 🗸						

Image 23: after pressing the "Karaoke" button

You can now see those yellow lines in the audio graph separating each word. However, this isn't what we want just yet. Therefore, click "Split". Now you'll be able to set split points in the bar next to "Accept Split". Set one after each syllable and then press "Accept Split".

Note: if there's a pause in the song after a word, you should place a split point there too and time a blank syllable!

Karaoke Cancel Split Accept Split bokura	[sora]takaku [k	imi] wo] mamotteku]
Comment Default	Actor	▼ Effect
0 0:00:00.75 0:00:07.25 0:00:06.50	0 0 0	BIUSfn ABABA
bokura sora takaku kimi wo mamotteku		

Image 24: just before actually splitting the syllables (a pause occurred after "takaku")

Next, you'll have to time each syllable by dragging the yellow dashed lines in the audio graph. You should put the yellow lines a little bit before the start of the syllable. You don't have to be very precise since human perception can't tell the difference between a few ms.

As a last step, you'll have to insert the karaoke tags. You can do so by right clicking in the box next to split and selecting "\k". Now, you just have to do the same thing for all the other lines in the song.



Image 25: inserting the karaoke tags

4.3.1 Kanji timer

Sometimes groups also add kanji karaoke to their releases. You can time these kanji even if you don't know Japanese by using the kanji timer in Aegisub. There's a good tutorial for the kanji timer on the Aegisub site: <u>http://docs.aegisub.org/manual/Kanji_Timer</u>

I would advice against kanji timing unless you know at least kana though. Sometimes, the kanji timer isn't completely right, and knowing hiragana and katakana can help you to catch errors.

5 Glossary of Terms

Here's a quick overview of some specific terms used in this document.

Timing: synchronizing subtitles with dialogue

Rough timing: setting the start and ending times of each line to match the audio exactly, also known as sharp timing

Fine timing: adding lead-in and lead-out, line-linking and snapping to keyframes, also known as scene timing

Lead-in: extra time added before the audio to make it easier for the viewer to read the line

Lead-out: extra time added after the audio to make it easier for the viewer to read the line

Line-linking: changing the ending time of a line to match the starting time of the next line

tpp: the Timing Post-Processor in Aegisub

fps: frames per second

Keyframe: a frame where the image changes a lot, most of the time indicates a scene change

Scene bleed: a line whose ending time is set just slightly after a scene change

Reverse scene bleed: a line whose starting time is set just slightly before a scene change, less noticeable than normal scene bleed

Line flickering: happens when there is less than 500 ms (depending on the timer's taste) between two successive lines, prevented by linking lines

Pre-timing: timing without a script, leaving blanks for the translator to fill in

Alpha timing: timing by delaying the appearance of part of the line

Karaoke timing: timing the syllables of a song to create a karaoke effect

6 F.A.Q.

Q: How do I shift times en masse?

A: Click "Timing > Shift Times..." All of the options there should speak for themselves.

7 Conclusion

Timing is obviously one of the most important jobs in the fansub world. However, some call it rather tedious and boring. For some people that might be true, but I myself like this job because I like to listen to the voices of the voice actors. In the end, instead of tedious and boring, I actually find this job to be fun!

As a fellow timer, I hope that you too will end up liking this job just as much as I do. I also hope that this document will have taught you how to time. From here on, you're on your own.

Final note: Practice makes perfect!

Appendix A

A.1 Timing guidelines

- 1. Generally, we start a line 150 ms before the audio starts. End one 350 ms after it ends.
- 2. If there are lines that are close to each other, about 500 ms, you join the ending time of the first line to the starting time of the second line (after having calculated where the starting time of the second line starts *with* the lead-in).
- 3. There are special occasions where you're close to what you call a "keyframe". If you're 300 ms or closer, after having added the lead-in time, start your line at that scene. If you are 500 ms or closer to a scene change, after adding the "lead out", link to the end of that scene.
- 4. If lines overlap because of you adding "lead out", cut on the "lead out" time, and try to always, if possible, have the "lead-in" time.
- 5. If lines overlap without adding lead in or lead out, just let them overlap.
- 6. In the cases where it's more than just part of the word after keyframe, link it over the scene and link with next line. Meaning: don't cut lines short if it's half a word or something, only if it's slightly over.
- 7. Make sure that very short lines are on screen long enough to read. No line should be less than about 0.5 seconds (500 ms) in duration.
- 8. Break long lines at the appropriate place (pause in speech or scene change). Subtitles should never be longer than 2 lines.

A.2 Tpp settings

The values in this screenshot should do for a normal 23.976 fps video:

Timing Post-Processor	
Apply to styles Default Sign	Options Affect selection only Lead-in/Lead-out Add lead in: 150 Add lead in: 150 Make adjacent subtitles continuous Enable Threshold: 500 Bias: Start <-
	Keyframe snapping Enable Starts before thres.: 6 Starts after thres.: 8 Ends before thres.: 12 Ends after thres.: 12
All None	OK Cancel <u>H</u> elp